
 
Salt Spring Island  

Watershed Protection Authority  
Regular Meeting Draft Agenda 

Date of Meeting: Friday May 20,2016 10:30 am – 12:30 pm  

Location:  145 Vesuvius Bay Rd., Salt Spring I., CRD PARC portable 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

3. MINUTES 

3.1 Draft Minutes of the April 22, 2016 SSI Watershed Protection Authority     
Regular Meeting – for approval 

4. CLOSED MEETING RESOLUTION 

The Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority closes this meeting to the public 
subject to Community Charter Section 90(2)b the consideration of information received 
and held in confidence relating to negotiations between the municipality and a 
provincial government or the federal government or both, or between a provincial 
government or the federal government or both and a third party. 

5. OPEN MEETING RESOLUTION 

The Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority re-opens this meeting to the 
public subject to Section 89 of the Community Charter. 

6. BUSINESS ITEMS 

6.1 Chair’s report  

6.2 St. Mary Lake water quality update – NSSWD Board Representative 

6.3 Cusheon Lake water quality update – Doreen Hewitt 

6.4  Coordinator’s report – attached for information 

6.5 Technical Working Group report – TWG Co-Chair (Don Hodgins)       

6.6 LTC Resolution #2 

http://library.ssiwatersheds.ca/?post_type=mdocs-posts&p=1114
p 12-14

http://www.apple.com


"The Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee supports SSIWPA’s draft 
proposal to undertake a multi-agency, integrated planning exercise to reconcile 
sustainable source of potable surface and ground water with the aspirations 
expressed in the OCP for modest improvements to the built environment, and 
to examine how maximum benefit can be realized from sustainable water 
resources through conservation and recycling." 

Request from SSIWPA Chair to each agency representative: 

As per the April 22, 2016 SSIWPA Regular Meeting Minutes, would you 
please come to the May 20, 2016 SSIWPA Regular Monthly Meeting 
prepared to confirm the nature of participation by your agency in this 
proposed Program for SSIWPA? 

6.6.2 Proposal 2-1: “The SSIWPA steering committee agrees to undertake an 
 Integrated Water Management Program to reconcile the sustainable 
 source quantity of potable surface and ground water available on Salt 
 Spring Island, with the aspirations expressed in the OCP for modest 
 improvements to the built environment, and to examine how maximum 
 benefit can be realized from sustainable water resources through  
 conservation and recycling.” - Chair 

6.6.3 Proposal 2-2: 'That SSIWPA steering committee refers to the TWG for 
 information and comment the intention to undertake an Integrated Water 
 Management Program for Salt Spring Island;  and, it requests the TWG to 
 draft the technical scope of the Program and how it might impact its 
 work  plan,  and then report back to the steering committee.” - Chair 

6.6.4 Proposal 2-3: “That SSIWPA steering committee is to prepare a draft   
 scope of work  for the Integrated Water Management Program as a  
 whole, and to refer this scope of  work to the various agencies and TWG 
 for comment and input.” - Chair 

6.7  LTC Resolution #1 (continued over page) 

6.7.1 The Local Trust Committee passed the following resolution (5/5/2016): 

"The Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee and North Salt Spring 
Waterworks District agreed to enhance the depth of collaboration through Salt 
Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority and have proposed that the Salt 
Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority prioritize a review and 
completion of the Water Conservation Supply and Demand Management Plan 
for Salt Spring Island, written by Opus DaytonKnight Consulting." 

6.7.2    Proposal 1-1: 
"That SSIWPA request that the Technical Working Group review the 
following three reports in order to provide a critical, technical 
assessment of the methods, results and conclusions reached by the 
reports’ authors, in terms of their stated objectives: 

i) Kerr Wood Leidal report on water availability for St. Mary Lake; 



ii) Kerr Wood Leidal report on water availability for Lake Maxwell; and 
iii) Opus DaytonKnight report on water conservation and demand 
management for Salt Spring Island, and to prepare a technical 
memorandum stating it’s findings and conclusions.” - Chair 

6.8 Budget and Workplan Updates 

6.8.1 2015-16 SSIWPA Income Statement - attached 

6.8.2 Current Workplan - attached  

6.8.3 Adopted 2016-17 Budget  and Corrected Budget - both attached 
  

6.9 SSIWPA Capacity-Building - a roundtable discussion 

6.9.1 FLNRO Water Budget Funding Application - memo from member Lapcevic 
attached  

6.10 2016 Water Fair Report - attached 

6.11 St. Mary Lake Sign – attached, update and next steps   

6.12 Upcoming Events 

6.12.1 SSIWPA and Community Workshop with Diana Allen  
“Estimating Groundwater Recharge to the Gulf Islands:  
Challenges and Progress” 

Proposed date: Friday August 19, 2016  

Proposed schedule: 
9:30 am – 11:00 am Regular monthly SSIWPA meeting 
11:00-11:15 am, break  
11AM publicized start time (public arrives over 15 minutes) 
11:15 am – 12:30 pm - presentation by Diana Allen, incl. questions 
12:30 pm - public departs 
12:30 – 1:30 pm SSIWPA-hosted luncheon (? with TWG) 
 

 Venue: discuss 

6.12.2 St. Mary Lake Celebration Event (Coordinator) 

(see next) 

http://library.ssiwatersheds.ca/?post_type=mdocs-posts&p=1100
p 15

p 16

p 16-17

p 20-47

p 48-49

http://library.ssiwatersheds.ca/?post_type=mdocs-posts&p=1106
http://library.ssiwatersheds.ca/?post_type=mdocs-posts&p=1116
http://library.ssiwatersheds.ca/?post_type=mdocs-posts&p=1118
http://library.ssiwatersheds.ca/?post_type=mdocs-posts&p=1098
http://library.ssiwatersheds.ca/?post_type=mdocs-posts&p=1104


6.13 Correspondence 

6.13.1 SSIWPA-supported Habitat Conservation Trust Foundation Grant Application 
from two local stewardship groups was made to the “Public Conservation 
Assistance Fund” on May 13, 2016 for shoreline restoration project (2 years).  

 Application includes benefits to fish and wildlife habitat, as well as public 
recreation. It includes volunteer-driven citizen science and education; two 
stewardship workshops per lake; youth involvement; biodiversity inventories 
over 2 years; and runoff and lake water chemistry monitoring over two years. 

6.13.2  Memo regarding capped Blackburn Rd. landfill monitoring - attached for 
information 

6.13.3 Letter sent from SSIWPA Coordinator to Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure (ACTION ITEM 7.3 April 22, 2016) - attached for information 

  

7. OTHER BUSINESS  

7.1 Questions and Comments from Public 

8. NEXT MEETING of the Steering Committee 

 Friday June 17, 2016 10:30 am - 12:30 pm – @ CRD portable 145 Vesuvius 
 Bay Rd., Salt Spring Island, BC 

9. ADJOURNMENT  

http://library.ssiwatersheds.ca/?post_type=mdocs-posts&p=1108
p 50

p 51

http://library.ssiwatersheds.ca/?post_type=mdocs-posts&p=1120


 

 
 

Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority Minutes 
April 22, 2016        DRAFT Page 1 

 

Salt Spring Island  
Watershed Protection Authority  

Minutes of a Regular Meeting 
 

 
Date of Meeting: Friday, April 22, 2016 
Location:        145 Vesuvius Bay Road, CRD PARC portable 
 Salt Spring Island 
 
Members Present: George Grams, Chair, Islands Trust Local Trustee  
  Shannon Cowan, Coordinator  
  Dale Green, Capital Regional District, Integrated Watershed (via 

 telephone conferencing) 
  Doreen Hewitt, Beddis Water Service Area Commissioner 
  Lorrie Hunt, Fernwood Water Service Area Commissioner  
 Wayne McIntyre, Capital Regional District (CRD) Director  
 Jeff Thompson, North Salt Spring Waterworks District (NSSWD) Trustee 
   
Staff Present: Sarah Shugar, Recorder 
 
Regrets: Pat Lapcevic, Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resources  
 Stefan Cermak, Regional Planning Manager (RPM) 
 
Technical Working Don Hodgins, Chair, SSIWPA Technical Working Group 
Group Liaison:  
 
Media and Others Fred Beall, Technical Working Group member   
Present: 3 members of the public 
   
These minutes follow the order of the agenda although the sequence may have varied. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Grams called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m. 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
By general consent, the agenda was adopted. 

3.  MINUTES 
 
3.1   Draft Minutes of the March 18, 2016 Salt Spring Island Watershed 
 Protection Authority Regular Meeting 

By general consent, the Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority 
agreed the Minutes of March 18, 2016 be amended by adding: “and send 
survey to watershed residents” to item 7.7.1 and that the minutes be adopted as 
amended.  



 

 
 

Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority Minutes 
April 22, 2016        DRAFT Page 2 

4.  CLOSED MEETING RESOLUTION 
 

At 10:32 a.m., it was MOVED and SECONDED that the Salt Spring Island Watershed 
Protection Authority closes this meeting to the public subject to Community Charter 
Section 90(1) a for the receipt of personal information about identifiable individuals who 
are being considered for positions being appointed by the Authority. 

CARRIED 
 

5.  OPEN MEETING RESOLUTION 
 
At 10:35 a.m., it was MOVED and SECONDED the Salt Spring Island Watershed 
Protection Authority re-opens this meeting to the public subject to Section 89 of the 
Community Charter. 

CARRIED 
 

6. RISE AND REPORT - none 

7. BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
7.1 Chair’s Report 
 

Chair Grams reported Trust Council approved the 2016-17 budget including the 
tax recquisition securing SSIWPA’s core funding.  He has been in discussions 
with Islands Trust Corporate Administrative Officer (CAO) Russ Hotsenpiller 
regarding whether SSIWPA’s Terms of Reference allows SSIWPA to undertake 
a broader review of surface and groundwater resources that would include a 
multi-agency approach to examine both surface and groundwater .  It has been 
confirmed that SSIWPA has the authority and the next step is for the Islands 
Trust to outline the work plan and for agencies to extend their commitment to 
collaborate on this workplan.  He also reported that he has been working on 
rebuildng the SSIWPA websites following hacking of the websites. Both 
websites are up and running again although there are still some issues with the 
document library.  The Saturna Island Local Trust Committee has invited Diana 
Allen to present her latest findings on groundwater research. 
 
W. McIntyre advised he would discuss the workplan for a surface and 
groundwater review with D. Green next week. 
 
Coordinator Cowan reported Mayne Island has completed a full assessement of 
their groundwater resources.   
 
By general consent, the Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority 
agreed Coordinator Cowan will contact the Ministry of Forests, Lands and 
Natural Resource Operations regarding their plans for a groundwater analysis.  

 
7.2   St. Mary Lake Water Quality Update – North Salt Spring Waterworks 
 District  
 

Jeff Thompson reported the level of St. Mary Lake is at the weir height and the 
level has dropped significantly.  The lake is currently experiencing an algal 
bloom.   The next North Salt Spring Waterworks meeting is scheduled on April 



 

 
 

Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority Minutes 
April 22, 2016        DRAFT Page 3 

27, 2016. 
 

 7.3 Cusheon Lake water quality update 
 
  Doreen Hewitt presented an update regarding the Cusheon Lake Watershed 

 and the following highlights were presented: 
• Secchi Disk measurement was 3.75  metres on Mar. 28, 3.74  metres on 

Apr. 1, 5 metres on Apr. 8, 4.9  metres on Apr. 14, 5.09 metres on Apr. 20. 
The lake is very clear at this time. 

• The uncorrected Lake gauge measurement was 1.32 metres on Mar. 28, 
1.298 metres on Apr. 1, 1.25 metres on Apr. 8, 1.268 metres on Apr. 14, 
1.284 metres on Apr. 20.  The lake is down .036 metres from March 28, 
2016; 

• Rain received at Salt Spring Elementary by April 21 2016 = 15.7mm, April 
30 2015 = 35.3 mm, April 30 2014 = 55.9 mm; 

• Blackburn Creek is flowing into and out of Blackburn Lake;  
• Blackburn Creek is still slowly flowing a very small amount into Cusheon 

Lake; 
• Cusheon Creek has only a small flow out of the lake;  
• The beavers started making a beaver dam just after April 8;  
• The lake temperature is rising and the oxygen at the bottom is getting lower; 
• It looks like Cusheon Lake is stratifying and the oxygen near the lake bottom 

is already at only 3 mg / litre; 
• Investigated a possible cause of the high turbidity last month. The Ministry of 

Transportation and Infrastructure (MOTI) did some ditching in March. It was 
disappointing that no mitigating measures were put in place to prevent 
silting. Photos were sent to Coordinator Cowan.  

 
There was discussion regarding recent ditching done my MOTI and it was 
noted that Mainroad Contracting has met with the Salt Spring Island Water 
Council regarding ditching practices in the past. 
 
By general consent, the Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority 
agreed D. Hewitt and Coordinator Cowan would contact the Ministry of 
Transportation and Infrastructure regarding best practices for ditching and would 
invite Roads Area Manager Travis Tormala to the next SSIWPA meeting. 

 
 7.4  Coordinator’s Report  
  

Coordinator Cowan presented the Coordinator’s Report for March 15, 2016 to 
April 14, 2016.   

  
By general consent, the Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority 
agreed Coordinator Cowan and W. McIntyre would follow up regarding a 
pollution barrier requirement for development in Riparian Areas. 
 

7.5  Technical Working Group Report  
   
  Don Hodgins presented an update regarding the Technical Working Group 

(TWG) and the following highlights were presented: 
• St. Mary Lake Monitoring and Reporting: 



 

 
 

Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority Minutes 
April 22, 2016        DRAFT Page 4 

o P-loading study is complete, looking at link between high rainfall and 
P-loading that should be complete by the end of May 2016; 

• Current Activities: 
o TWG will host a public meeting regarding climate change and 

drought.  The event is scheduled on May 9, 2016 1:00 p.m. to 3:00 
p.m. at the CRD PARC portable and all SSIWPA members are 
invited to attend; 

o Cusheon Lake – septic field monitoring: looking into whether soil 
sampling would be sufficient rather than drilling wells as was done for 
SML; 

o Groundwater Quantity: in preliminary stages of looking at the well 
data and inventory. 

 
  D. Green reported Ministry of Environment has engaged a consultant to 

undertake lake sediment sampling as part of a management plan for Elk Lake.  
There is a possibility for sediment sampling in Cusheon Lake as well and he will 
discuss the sampling plan for Cusheon Lake with the TWG. 

 
7.6 Cusheon Watershed Management Plan Review   
 
 7.6.1 Update by TWG – presentation by TWG members Fred Beall and 

 Katsky Venter 
 

 Fred Beall presented an update regarding the Cusheon Watershed 
Management Plan (CWMP) 2007 Review by the Technical Working 
Group and the following items were noted: 
• Met with Cusheon Lake Stewardship Committee to gather their 

perspective on the watershed and CWMP;  
• Reviewed scientific reports and CWMP;  
• TWG Proposed Actions: 

o Continue to review previous reports, possibly collect new 
water quality data; 

o Develop a water balance model for CW; 
o Update P modeling for CL (P Budget); 
o Develop research projects as time and funds permit, in 

priority order for ability to impact water quality and quantity in 
Cusheon Lake, and health of the watershed: i) P deposition, 
ii) lake-bottom sediment loading, and iii) septic-P lake loading 

• The three primary sources of P from the atmosphere are dust,  
pollen, and biomass burning and it was noted that atmopheric 
loading may be more significant than previously identified.  

 
 It was also noted that landfill sites are required to be monitored for 30 

years. 
 

Chair Grams acknowledged the Technical Working Group for work done 
on the Cusheon Watershed Management Plan Review . 

 
7.7 Updated SSIWPA Workplan  
 



 

 
 

Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority Minutes 
April 22, 2016        DRAFT Page 5 

 Coordinator Cowan presented an overview of the updated SSIWPA Workplan 
and noted the SML Celebration is scheduled for June 19, 2016. 

 There was discussion regarding the SSIWPA Workplan and the following items 
were noted:  
• add a legend for acronymns in the workplan; 
• delete completed items or make a second chart for completed items; 
• delete item 33; 
• add links to the reports. 

 
7.8 Habitat Conservation Trust Foundation “Public Conservation Assistance 

Fund” 
 
 7.8.1  “Shoreline Restoration of Public Use Areas at Cusheon Lake 

 and St. Mary Lake, Salt Spring I., B.C. “ A DRAFT Grant 
 Application by Cusheon Lake Stewardship Committee and Island 
 Stream and Salmon Enhancement Society  

 
Coordinator Cowan presented a project overview for the “Public 
Conservation Assistance Fund” grant application.  The Cusheon Lake 
Stewardship Committee is interested in undertaking riparian 
restoration of the Cusheon Lake public beach access.  The CRD has a 
Licence of Occupation from the MOTI for the beach access and there 
is no ownership of the dock.  There was discussion regarding the grant 
application and it was noted the Salt Spring Island Parks and 
Recreation Commission and MOTI have expressed their support. 
 
By general consent, the Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection 
Authority agreed Coordinator Cowan would contact Nancy Krieg, 
Landscape Architect regarding the Cusheon Lake public beach 
access. 

 
By general consent, the Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection 
Authority expressed support for the Habitat Conservation Trust 
Foundation “Public Conservation Assistance Fund” grant application 
for riparian restoration of the Cusheon Lake public beach access. 

 
7.9 St. Mary Lake Sign – Final DRAFT 
 
 The final draft of the St. Mary Lake Sign was presented for consideration.  

There was discussion regarding the St. Mary Lake Sign and the following items 
were noted: 
• to seek clarification from the CRD regarding the CRD logo and whether it 

represents the Salt Spring Island Parks and Recreation Commission; 
• the watershed map is to be finalized and approved by the Islands Trust and 

should include an accurate representation of the riparian areas and a clear 
watershed boundary. 

 
By general consent, the Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority 
expressed support for the final draft of the St. Mary Lake Sign pending 
submission of the watershed map to the Capital Regional District for final 
approval. 



 

 
 

Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority Minutes 
April 22, 2016        DRAFT Page 6 

 
 

7.10 Correspondence 
 

7.10.1 Letter sent by SSIWPA Coordinator to CRD Resource Management 
Department re: Blackburn decommissioned landfill and waste transfer 
station site monitoring reports  

 
  The correspondence was received for information. 
 

8. OTHER BUSINESS  
 
8.1 Questions and Comments from Public  
 
 One member of the public expressed concern regarding the recent ditching  

work done within the Cusheon Lake Watershed and noted the restoration work 
that may be necessary.  He asked for suggestions on how to stop these ditching 
practices and noted the Fisheries Act was a tool that is no longer available.  He 
expressed further concern that Mainroad Contracting may seed and fertilize the 
ditches . 

 
One member of the public expressed concern regarding the recent ditching 
work done in the Cusheon Lake Watershed and noted the presence of white 
material entering a fish-bearing stream that was concerning to Watershed 
Preservation Society volunteers.  She suggested regular inter-agency 
discussions regarding best practices for ditching. 

 
One member of the public acknowledged the Salt Spring Island Watershed 
Protection Authority for efforts to protect the watersheds.  He expressed 
concern regarding the recent ditching work done in the Cusheon Lake 
Watershed and suggested that concerned residents speak with the machine 
operator and record the ditching activities. 

 
 By general consent, the Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority 

agreed Coordinator Cowan would provide contact information for public 
complaints regarding ditching practices within the Cusheon Lake Watershed. 

 
9. NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting is scheduled Friday, May 20, 2016, 10:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m. at the CRD 
portable 145 Vesuvius Bay Road. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT  

 
By general consent the meeting adjourned at 12:09 p.m.  

 

__________________________________ 
George Grams, Chair 
 



 

 
 

Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority Minutes 
April 22, 2016        DRAFT Page 7 

CERTIFIED CORRECT: 
 
__________________________________ 
Sarah Shugar, Recorder 



Coordinator’s report 1 

 
 

SSIWPA Coordinator’s Report for the period: 
 

April 15, 2016 – May 13, 2016 
 
 
SSIWPA – Meetings 
 
Lynne Magee VIHA follow up  
        tried again Friday 29 Apr (no response) 
        called Tuesday 26 Apr 
        called and emailed week of April 18 
        rcvd email Mar 17 from Lynne expressing interest in attending SSIWPA Steering meetings 
agenda created May 20 Regular SSIWPA meeting  
advertised TWG meeting to Steering and public 
TWG meeting agenda creation and distribution  
TWG sent draft May 9 minutes to committee  
TWG meeting facilitation (Due May 9, 2016) 
reviewed DRAFT SSIWPA meeting minutes 
forwarded minutes to Chair and Planner 
adopted minutes March 2016 sent to Trust Staff and online  
         
 
Other In-Progress: 
TWG follow up after meeting 
        � Meet with two members regarding action items in May 9 TWG minutes 
         
 
 
 
SSIWPA – Projects and Facilitation 
 
Apr 22 Item 7.3: Coordinator to invite MoTI Roads Manager Tormala to next SSIWPA meeting re: 
ditching Blackburn  
  
Apr 22 Item 7.1: Coordinator Cowan will contact the Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural 
Resource Operations regarding their plans for a groundwater analysis 
 
Budget: reviewed 2015-16 year end income statement with finance officer 
Corrections to 2016-17 budget (see Agenda May 20) 
  
Landfill Site investigation CRD Resource Mgmt Dept  

call CRD about landfill testing  
contacted A Bains about FOI request for site reports, reply received and forwarded to 
TWG and SSIWPA 
forwarded findings in memo to Cusheon Lake Stewardship Cttee  

 in progress:  
� Ask Fred Beall and Katsky Venter how findings might impact review of CWMP?  



Coordinator’s report 2 

 
Ditching issues Blackburn:Cusheon (Due May 4, 2016) 
 wrote letter to Travis Tormala, MoTI  
 in progress 

� send letter with DHewitt and photos requesting advice about how public can stop this 
action  

 
Assisted with writing HCTF Grant – SML/CW Riparian Restore  (approx. 20 hours) 
(This grant will appeal to more than 3 Management Actions in SML IWMP 2015, and some in 
CWMP 2007) 
 Worked with N. Krieg for planting site plans 
 Worked with FLNRO, MOE, MoTI on permissions, letters of support 
 Researched fish and wildlife data 
 Compiled package to submit 
 
Wrote Water Fair report  
 got review by Suzan Chamney, Water Council  
 published as draft in this agenda package (May 20) 
 
Map and Sign SML – finalizing steps  
 With Barb and Kate Emmings - finalize map  

Requested verification of Hulqumi’num name for lake on the sign –referred to Robert 
Morales and Rosanne Daniels from HTG (hulquminum treaty group)(in-progress) 
CRD approved correct logo (K Campbell) 
spoke to Karla Campbell CRD on May 5 
 

 In-progress:  
� get CRD approval for sign – PARC to review May 16  

 � send sign to printer/sign maker  
  
 
SSIWPA Workplan (updates) 
Created one new item at bottom 
Added bars to SML IWMP actions without timelines yet 
 In progress 

� add links to the reports  
 
Other In-Progress:   
 
� Show the effects of recent ditching to MoTI and Mainroads. 
   Invite Mainroads to meet with SSIWPA – CLSC follow up? 
 
� DPA package, and Building BMPs, and Septic info package for Realtors 
 � bylaw info  
 � place on website, make placard for display Jun 19 
 � add contact info for public re: ditching (Item 8.1 April 22 2016)  
 
 
  



Coordinator’s report 3 

SSIWPA - Outreach 
 
Communications with SML public re: vegetation 
Communications with NSSWD Manager – referrals 
Watersheds 2016 and Freshwater alliance  - promo to Watermark and online (Due May 13, 2016) 
Write Watermark newsletter for May 
Water Fair bookkeeping, report writing (Due May 12, 2016) � 
News post about LTC resolutions on website 
Response to member of public regarding invitations to TWG members for private group 
presentations 
Announcements for other groups: 

Aquatic weed workshop Elk Lake news post on website 
Added Neil and Sylvia and Lynne Magee to newsletter subscriber list 
 
SML Celebration Event Plan  
 Set vision on paper  
 invitation to participants created 
 two speakers confirmed 
 NSSWD, Water Council, and SSIWPS invited 
 volunteer call sent to list of shoreline property owners 

In progress:  
 � Insurance – in progress 

� Games and races – plan and leaders 
 � Refreshments – plan and volunteers 
 � Invite performers 
 � Invite Islands Trust and CRD spokespeople  
 � How to display the Plan  
 � Invite the SML PAC to be involved  
 � complete IWMP action 4 - BMPs listed on web and placard for event  
 � call SSI Transit about shuttle   
 � call SS Rentals about chairs  
 � volunteer list filled  

gofishbc  
 
Diana Allen event - Date secured: Aug 19, 2016 
 In progress: 

� invite Saturna, Mayne, Pender, Galiano, Gabriola LTCs  
 � secure venue  

 
Other In-Progress: 
 
Query re glyphosate on Lee rd � 
 
Cusheon Survey  

outreach calls etc.  
data analysis, describing trends 
report out to SSIWPA 

 
 



SALT%SPRING%ISLAND%LOCAL%TRUST%COMMITTEE%
% ! ! !WATERSHED%PROTECTION%AUTHORITY%
% ! ! !FOR%REVENUE/EXPENDITURES%RECOGNIZED%TO%MARCH%31,%2016%

! ! ! !(See%details%on%2015J16%expense%details%worksheet)%
% ! ! !

! % % ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !
REVENUE%

!
YTD%ACTUALS% BUDGET%

BALANCE%
REMAINING%

%%OF%BUDGET%
SPENT%YTD%

!
SSI!LTA!Special!Property!Tax!Requisition! !$119,500.00!! !$119,500.00!! 0.00! 100%!

!
Unspent!funds!from!2014/15!Special!Property!Tax!Requisition! 42,980.93! 42,980.93! 0.00! 100%!

!
Grant!Revenues! 8,323.41! 10,823.41! 2,500.00! *!

!
CRD!Contribution!to!SSIWPA! 3,500.00! 0.00!

! !
!

Total%Revenue% %$174,304.34%% %$173,304.34%% %$2,500.00%% 101%%

! ! ! ! ! !EXPENSES%
! ! ! ! !

!
SSIWPA!Coordination! 83,145.14! !$85,000.00!! 1,854.86! 98%!

!
SDM!Process!supported!by!Grants! 8,323.41! 10,823.41! 2,500.00! 77%!

!
SDM!Process!not!support!by!Grants!budgeted!for!2015T16! 21,471.99! 0.00! T21,471.99!

!
!

Meeting!cost!(3!committees,!minute!taking,!room!rental)! 5,414.43! 8,000.00! 2,585.57! 68%!

!
Water!Conservation!Plan! 40,820.80! 42,980.93! 2,160.13! 95%!

!
Community!Events!and!Communications! 6,800.95! 4,000.00! T2,800.95! 170%!

!
Contingency! 490.37! 10,000.00! 9,509.63! 5%!

!
Administration!Levy! 7,837.25! 12,500.00! 4,662.75! 63%!

!
Total%Expenses% %$174,304.34%% %$173,304.34%% J1,000.00% 101%%

! ! ! ! ! !
!

Total%Surplus%(Deficit)%to%date% %$J%%%% %$J%%%%
% !

!
*unspent!in!2015T16/remains!in!unearned!grant!revenue!!

! ! ! ! 



Activity
Management 

Actikon Start Date Finish Date
% 

Complete

28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8

Jul 14 Aug 14 Sept 14 Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sept 15 Oct 15 Nov 15 Dec 15 Jan 16 Feb 16 Mar 16 Apr 16 May 16 Jun 16 Jul 16 Aug 16 Sept 16 Oct 16 Nov 16 Dec 16 Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apr 17 May 17

28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8

28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8

Coordination, Funding, Admin 11/16/15 5/31/16 87%

LTC-SSIWPA project: Conservation and Supply 
Consulting NSSWD  area

12/1/15 3/31/16 75% Report pending.

Grant proposal: HCTF for SML IWMP actions, 
Cusheon survey and stewardship actions

2/1/16 5/31/16 75%

approvedBudget CRD for 2016 11/16/15 3/14/16 100%

approvedTax Requistion funding request for SSIWPA 1/1/16 3/31/16 100%

Outreach and Watershed Stewardship 
Education

9/21/15 9/16/16 82%

THIS WORKPLAN IS DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES

Fall Fair 2015 9/21/15 9/24/15 100%

completedWater Fair 2016 (incl. IWMP workshop action) 1/1/16 5/13/16 100%

completedMONAD - SSIWPA booth at community event 2/1/16 2/29/16 100%

SML : Three common perceptions challenged by the 
SSIWPA 2014-15 monitoring program_ M Squires

2/1/16 2/29/16 100%

completed

completed

SML: Septic Final Paper 2014-15_ D Hodgins 2/1/16 2/26/16 100%

SML Celebration at the lake 5/3/16 6/17/16 0%

completedOpen house 2015 11/27/15 11/27/15 100%

Annual report 2/29/16 2/29/16 100% completed

Fall Fair 2016 9/16/16 9/16/16 0%

   Water Fair 2017 3/31/17 3/31/17 0%

St Mary Lake 9/21/15 9/1/17 44%

SSIWPA IWMP Final and Printing 12/1/15 12/1/15 100% completed

Reporting: REFBC, Berman Fdn, Prov. Ministries 10/5/15 10/16/15 100% completedLEGEND

CLSC                Cusheon Lake Stewardship Committee
CRD                  Capital Regional District
DW                    Driftwood
EFP                   Environmental Farm Plan
HCTF                 Habitat Conservation Trust Foundation  
ISSES               International Student Support and Educational Services
IWMP                Integrated Watershed Management Plan   
LTC                  Local Trust Committee 
MONAD   
NSSWD             North Salt Spring Waterworks District
PCAF                 Public Conservation Assistance Fund
POLIS               Peroject on Ecological Governance
REFBC              Real Estate Foundation of BC
SML                  St Mary Lake
SSIWPA           Salt Spring Island Wartershed Protection Authority
TWG                 Technical Working Group
WQ                    Water quality

Press Releases: DW, Van island 9/28/15 10/16/15 100% completed

Public WQ sampling program presentation by Dr. 
Squires

10/5/15
10/7/15

10/9/15
10/7/15

100%
100%

Report pending.

completed

Stormwater monitoring: TWG MA1 10/26/15 4/29/16 75%

Septic : TWG MA2 10/12/15
11/9/15

10/16/15
4/29/16

100%
100% completed online 

April 14, 2016Quality monitor: TWG, CRD, NSSWD MA3 10/24/16 12/30/16 0%

BMP document MA4 5/23/16 8/19/16 0%

Survey - Cusheon initially. Island wide second edition. MA5 2/1/16
7/4/16

5/31/16
10/31/16

75%
0%

HCTF PCAF funding  application writing/support for 
Stewardship Groups: for shoreline riparian restoration 
project SML site, together with Cusheon site. 

MA5, 6, 9, 12, 13, 
16

3/1/16 5/16/16 50%

Workshops: March 13/16; potential Jun 19/16 at SML 
celebration event, Aug 19/Diana Allen; Water Fair 
2017

MA6 3/1/16
6/20/16

3/31/16
6/20/16

100%
0%

Cowichan Trip Report (Sept 18) 9/28/15 10/9/15 100%

EFP Group workshop, - cancelled until justification for 
need (after conversation with D. Tattam) (SSIAA 
collaborators)

MA7

Signage - CRD MA8 3/1/16 6/30/16 50%

Committee meetings and coordination, event 
production

MA9

Kids for Creeks - liaise, participate in Water Fair MA10 9/28/15
11/9/15

10/9/15
3/11/16

100%
100%

completed

Septic:  existing septic brochure education (mail outs, 
events)

MA11 9/21/15
2/23/16

9/25/15
9/30/16

100%
50%

SML Survey - includes septic question MA11 8/1/16 9/30/16 0%

Assist to carry out Shoreline Restoration Cusheon 
and St Mary (project management and grant writing 
support for grant holders, CLSC and ISSES if grant 
successful )

MA5, 6, 9, 12, 13, 
16

9/1/16 9/1/17 0%

EcoAction Grant application (implement 2017) MA14, 15 6/1/16 10/31/16 0%

completedkeyline workshop: Hatchet n'Seed MA16 3/1/16 3/31/16 100%

POLIS Capacity Building Workshop, (minutes posted 
to steering and webinar follow up)

MA6 3/1/16 3/31/16 100% completed

TWG Reports 8/1/14 5/31/16 87%

Final report pendingAlgae and phosphorus - D Hodgins 10/1/15 5/31/16 50%

Can biomanipulation alter algal blooms..? M Squires 
final

1/1/16 1/29/16 100% completed

Phosphorus Loading Estimates to SML from Septic 
Sources - D Hodgins

8/1/14 4/29/16 100% completed

   Drought Analysis Report 2015 - D Hodgins 11/30/15 11/30/15 100% completed

Cusheon Lake 9/18/15 1/31/17 32%

completedReview Cusheon Management Plan 2007 11/2/15 4/22/16 100%

Identify Data Gaps in 2007 plan 1/1/16 5/31/16 50%

Survey pilot for BMPs and education info 11/23/15 5/31/16 25%

Creek and lake quality and nutrient monitoring liaison 
with independent scientists

9/21/15 1/31/17 0%

completedCusheon public meeting, presentations to SSIWPA 9/18/15 10/23/15 100%

   Establish Cusheon Public Advisory Committee 11/20/15 4/5/17 25%

   Other small grants for year two Cusheon dock    
project (assist CLSC and ISSES)

8/1/16 11/30/16 0%

Supply/Conservation 10/26/15 8/19/16 11%

TWG problem identification, modelling project draft 
steps

10/26/15 5/20/16 25%

Steering committee expansion for groundwater 
expertise

11/9/15 5/20/16 0%

Integrated Water Management Program development 5/20/16 8/19/16 0%

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58



SSI#Watershed#Protection#Authority#Adopted#Budget

Period:#April#1,#2016#>#March#31,#2017#(as#amended#February#22,#2016)

Revenue
Budget#Item Source Amount

Coordination Tax/Requisition 110,500.00////////////////////
SML:Plan Capital/Regional/District/1 20,400.00//////////////////////
SML:Plan Grants/2 25,800.00//////////////////////
Cusheon Capital/Regional/District 5,000.00////////////////////////

Total#Income 161,700.00#############

Expenses
Coordination Coordinator/contracts 85,000.00//////////////////////
Coordination Events/and/Communications 5,300.00////////////////////////
Coordination Meetings* 8,000.00////////////////////////
Coordination Administration/Levy 12,000.00//////////////////////

subtotal 110,300.00####################

SML:Plan Stormwater/(MA1) 11,900.00
SML:Plan Septic/(MA2) 4,000.00
SML:Plan Lake/chem,/sediment 27,000.00
SML:Plan Education/MA/6,/8/3 5000**
SML:Plan Riparian/Biodiversity/(MA12)/3 8,500.00////////////////////////

subtotal 51,400.00######################

Cusheon Monitoring/3 not/assessed
subtotal ://///////////////////////////////
Total#Expenses 161,700.00#############

Surplus >###########################
1/CRD/amounts/subject/to/change
2,3/Grant/funding/applications/pending

Adopted version February 2016



SSI#Watershed#Protection#Authority#Adopted#Budget

Period:#April#1,#2016#>#March#31,#2017#(as#amended#February#22,#2016)

Revenue
Budget#Item Source Amount

Coordination Tax/Requisition 110,500.00////////////////////
SML:Plan Capital/Regional/District/1 20,400.00//////////////////////
SML:Plan Grants/2/! 30,800.00&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&
Cusheon Capital/Regional/District 5,000.00////////////////////////

Total#Income 166,700.00#############

Expenses
Coordination Coordinator/contracts 85,000.00//////////////////////
Coordination Events/and/Communications* 8,000.00////////////////////////
Coordination Meetings* 5,300.00////////////////////////
Coordination Administration/Levy 12,000.00//////////////////////

subtotal 110,300.00####################

SML:Plan Stormwater/(MA1) 11,900.00
SML:Plan Septic/(MA2) 4,000.00
SML:Plan Lake/chem,/sediment 27,000.00
SML:Plan Education/MA/6,/8/3# 5,000.00
SML:Plan Riparian/Biodiversity/(MA12)/3 8,500.00////////////////////////

subtotal 56,400.00######################

Cusheon Monitoring/3 not/assessed
subtotal ://///////////////////////////////
Total#Expenses 166,700.00#############

Surplus >###########################
1/CRD/amounts/subject/to/change
2,3/Grant/funding/applications/pending

*Correction./Original/had/these/line/item/amounts/reversed./Here,/
reflect/calculations/done/for/original/budget.*

♯/amended/Feb/22/budget/had/5,000*/under/expenses/that/did/
not/get/computed/in/total.

(!)/2,500/grant/funding/was/unspent/in/2015:16/fiscal./Trust/
Accounting/officer/confirms/it/is/available./Originally/earmarked/
for/TAC/Monitoring/program./

Corrected Budget Draft for 
Discussion Purposes



Item%6.9.1%
%
From:%Pat%Lapcevic,%Steering%Committee%Member%
And%Water%Protection%Section%Head%
Ministry%of%Forests,%Lands%and%Natural%Resource%Operations%
%
Received%May%13,%2016%
%
Re:%SSIWPA%Meeting%Action%7.1%April%22,%2016%
%
Hi%Shannon,%
%%
A%short%update%on%FLNRO’s%funding%request:%
%%
We%have%asked%for%funds%from%the%Ministry%of%Environment%“Groundwater%Science%
Program”%to%complete%an%integrated%(surfaceVwater%and%groundwater)%water%budget%for%
Salt%Spring%Island.%%A%primary%objective%of%the%work%is%to%provide%the%province%(water%
authorizations)%and%the%community%with%a%tool%that%supports%sustainable%allocation%of%
water%resources.%%If%we%are%awarded%the%funding%(decision%expected%in%early%June),%a%
detailed%scope%of%work%and%terms%of%reference%for%a%consultant%study%will%be%developed%
in%conjunction%with%the%SWIPPA%TAC.%%The%“Groundwater%Science%Program”%is%a%new%
funding%source%to%support%the%development%of%knowledge%and%tools%on%BC%aquifers%and%
the%implementation%of%the%Water%Sustainability%Act.%
%%
Pat%
%%
Pat%Lapcevic%

Water%Protection%Section%Head%
Resource%Managenment%|%West%Coast%Region%
%%
250V751V3149%
 



Salt Spring Water Fair & 
Rainwater Harvesting Tour 
2016 Final Report - Prepared by: Shannon Cowan and Suzan Chamney, Co-Organizers  

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �1



We#acknowledge#financial#contribu3ons#and#support#for#the#event#from#the#
SSI#Watershed#Protec3on#Authority#(Islands#Trust),#and#the#Province#of#

Bri3sh#Columbia.#

This#report#is#posted#on#the#Water#Council#website#and#  
the#SSI#Watershed#Protec3on#Authority#website.#

 

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �2



Introduction

The#Second#Annual#SSI#Rainwater#Harves3ng#Tour#&#Water#Fair#was#held#on#the#weekend#of#
March#12M13,#2016,#close#to#Interna3onal#World#Water#Day#(March#22,#2016).#

The#purpose#of#the#event#was#to#raise#public#awareness#of#the#connec3ng#quality#of#water,#and#
the#importance#of#preserving#a#reliable#water#supply,#both#for#drinking#and#irriga3on,#and#to#
foster#the#ethic#of#water#conserva3on#on#the#island.#In#response#to#posi3ve#and#construc3ve#

feedback#from#par3cipants#of#last#year’s#inaugural#event,#the#goal#this#year#was#to#
demonstrate#and#create#interac3ve#experiences#for#community#members#to#learn#about#the#
many#ways,#both#small#and#large,#that#people#can#engage#with#water#awareness,#especially#as#
waterMwise#design#and#lifestyle#changes.#This#year’s#event#was#also#a#celebra3on#of#the#30%#

conserva3on#that#was#measured#within#the#North#Salt#Spring#Waterworks#District#alone#during#
the#2015#drought#on#Salt#Spring#Island,#and#a#celebra3on#of#the#many#new#rainwaterM

harves3ng#households#who#created#systems#during#2015#with#the#help#of#what#they#learned#
during#the#2015#Rainwater#Harves3ng#Tour.#

�   �   �

Water Fair on Salt Spring I., March 13, 2016

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �3



2. Rain Harvesting Tour March 12, 2016
Rainwater#harves3ng#is#the#prac3ce#of#collec3ng#rainwater#for#beneficial#use.#Usually#this#
refers#to#collec3on#of#rainwater#from#a#rooYop#and#storing#it#in#tanks#and#cisterns#for#later#use#
in#or#near#the#point#of#collec3on.#The#use#of#rain#barrels#is#a#simple#form#of#rainwater#
harves3ng,#although#larger#storage#systems#are#required#to#serve#most#purposes.##

In#the#Gulf#Islands,#where#reliable#surface#water#or#groundwater#supplies#are#not#always#
available,#several#homes#and#businesses#rely#on#rainwater#harves3ng#as#their#only#source#of#

water.#Rainwater#
harves3ng#is#
emerging#as#one#of#
many#sustainable#
development#
strategies#to#reduce#
the#ecological#
impacts#of#
development.#

On#Saturday,#March#
12,#people#were#
invited#to#take#the#
“Every#Drop#Counts#
Rainwater#
Harves3ng#Tour”#of#
ten#residen3al#
proper3es#on#Salt#
Spring#Island.#Three#
or#four#were#
returning#hosts#who#
were#also#on#the#
2015#Tour.#This#was#
an#opportunity#for#
an#inside#look#at#
how#neighbours#are#
harves3ng#water!#A#
map#of#the#
loca3ons#was#

available#for#downloading#(Appendix#A).#Guided#tours#of#each#system#were#given#by#the#
homeowner.##

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �4



3. Water Fair Program

3.1 Booths

Informa3on,#demonstra3ons#and#products#were#exhibited#at#a#number#of#booths#by#the#
following#agencies,#organisa3ons#and#businesses:#

• SSI Water Council 

• SSI Water Protection Authority 

• SSI Water Preservation Society 

• Kids4Creeks 

• Cusheon Lake Stewardship 

• Hatchet & Seed (Permaculture Design and Build, Saanich, BC) 

• Gulf Islands Rain Harvesting & Irrigation (Matt Nowell) 

• Transition Salt Spring 

• North Salt Spring Waterworks District 

• SS Water Co. 

• Windsor Plywood 

• Mouat’s Home Hardware 

• Quentin Harris Native Art 

3.2 Do-It-Yourself Demos

12:15#pm:#How#to#Build#a#Rainwater#Barrel#by#Peter#Clarke,#Windsor#Plywood  
Peter#has#a#very#passionate#and#clear#teaching#style.#He#successfully#gathered#approximately#20#people#

to#his#demo#and#together,#the#group#built#a#simple#but#func3onal#rainwater#barrel.##

12:45#pm:#Household#Items#that#are#Great#for#Using#the#Rainwater#You#Harvested#by#Sharon#Bywater#
(SelfMproclaimed#water#nerd)#

Sharon#demonstrated#the#tools#and#items#that#she#has#used#to#develop#low#tech#means#to#save#water#
and#to#reMpurpose#household#items#towards#water#sustainability.#She#acracted#quite#a#crowd,#and#
several#acendees#leY#comments#on#the#feedback#forms#applauding#her#demo. 

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �5



3.3 Workshops

The#workshop#schedule#and#presenta3on#topics#are#summarized#in#Appendix#B.#Invita3ons#to#
deliver#a#Water#Fair#workshop#went#out#in#in#October#–#January#to#a#range#of#poten3al#
presenters.#Some#were#reMinvited#because#they#gave#workshops#in#2015,#others#were#selected#
as#appropriate#presenters#for#novel#waterMrelated#topics#in#2016.#The#invitees#arranged#a#
schedule#with#the#help#of#volunteer#Maggie#Squires#who#was#the#workshop#facilitator.##

The#workshops#were#held#in#a#classroom#upstairs#at#the#venue,#and#there#was#plen3ful#sea3ng#
and#adequate#projec3on#capability#in#the#space#(GISS#Room#N205).#Tayler#Krawzcyck#of#
Hatchet#n’#Seed#gave#the#first#talk#outlining#mechanisms#to#sculpt#land,#gardens#or#farms#in#
order#to#becer#manage#water#resources#when#they#are#plen3ful#using#permaculture#principles.#
Mac#Nowell#of#Gulf#Islands#Rain#Haves3ng#and#Irriga3on#shared#ways#to#calculate#appropriate#
rainwater#storage#volumes#and#how#to#design#and#operate#systems#to#fit#volumetric#needs.##

AYer#lunch#break,#Maggie#Squires,#the#workshop#facilitator#made#a#presenta3on#about#the#
Pacific#Ins3tute#for#Climate#Solu3ons#(University#of#Victoria)#–#an#online#resource#for#becer#
understanding#local#and#regional#changes#predicted#by#leading#science#on#the#topic;#and#she#
highlighted#relevant#water#and#climate#messaging#from#local#gardeningMmaster#Linda#
Gilkeson’s#new#book.#Meghan#McKee,#Water#Quality#Specialist#of#North#Salt#Spring#
Waterworks#District#gave#a#compelling#report#about#the#impacts#of#the#2015#drought#and#
recommended#guidelines#from#the#community#water#u3lity#to#conserve#and#manage#the#
resource#in#2016#and#beyond.#Switching#it#up#from#‘fresh’#to#‘salt’,#David#Denning#shared#about#
new#research#to#detect#anoxic#marine#condi3ons#in#Ganges#Harbour#and#invited#the#public#to#
join#in#the#inves3ga3on#and#monitoring#to#prevent#largeMscale#marine#organism#dieMoffs#like#
some#that#have#recently#occurred#in#this#area.#As#the#crowd#floated#into#its#final#workshop#of#
the#day,#most#bodies#remained#in#chairs#and#the#room#filled#up#to#welcome#Quwutsu’un#First#
Na3ons#Elder#Ron#George#(Tousilum),#who#shared#his#skill#with#the#drum,#and#cradled#the#

listeners#in#his#hearpelt#personal#journey#with#Water#as#a#spiritual#en3ty#and#a#lifeMgiving#
rela3on.#Tousilum#described#the#poignant#and#reverent#place#that#Water#holds#within#the#
Quwutsu’un#worldview,#to#an#audience#rapt#with#acen3on.  

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �6



3.4 KidZone

In#order#to#engage#children,#a#number#of#water#related#ac3vi3es#were#set#up#in#two#classrooms#
simultaneously#as#the#KidZone#(schedule#in#Appendix#B).#Highlights:#

• Poetry/Art#wall#on#which#children#could#freely#express#about#water#and#nature#and#faceM
pain3ng#by#the#Fastpitch#team#volunteers#were#fun,#and#freeMform#elements#of#the#Fair.#

• Colouring#tables#with#waterMthemed#ac3vity#book#pages,#reprinted#with#permission,#and#
with#crossword#and#colour#pages#from#Capital#Regional#District#Ollie#the#Ocer#
Watershed#Stewardship#Program,#reprinted#with#permission.##

• Elizabeth#Buchanan#(local#author)#performed#an#interac3ve#waterMthemed#story#with#the#
children.#

• Water#Safety#games#with#the#Rainbow#Road#Pool#staff##

• Quen3n#Harris,#a#local#na3ve#ar3st,#taught#animal#drawing#to#the#children#in#two#
interac3ve#storytelling#sessions.#These#were#well#acended!##

• Shaun#Lutn#captured#the#magic#of#the#event#in#his#conjuring#performance.#To#his#
amazement,#the#children#were#so#engaged#in#proving#it#was#‘real’#and#not#‘magic’#that#
they#had#to#be#peeled#off#his#body#during#his#finale!!##

• ‘River#of#Sound’#art#installa3on,#created#by#Robi#Smith#was#enjoyed#by#many#who#floated#
between#the#KidZone#areas.#It#was#an#interac3ve#water#instrument#sta3on.#

3.5 Food

Sustainable,#local#lunch#bites#were#sold#to#patrons#by#Hips#and#Haws,#and#complimentary#
coffee,#tea#and#water#were#provided#thanks#to#community#dona3ons#by#Salt#Spring#Coffee,#and#
Salt#Spring#Water#Co.#The#menu#is#acached#in#Appendix#B.#

4. Participation

More#than#50#par3cipants#took#part#in#the#Rainwater#Harves3ng#Tour#and#more#than#200#
people#acended#the#Water#Fair.#The#workshops#were#popular#with#approximately#40#people#at#
each#session.##

Posi3ve#comments#were#received#from#many#par3cipants#and#sugges3ons#received#for#next#
year’s#Fair.#Responses#are#shared#here#in#the#Comments#Summary#(Appendix#C).##

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �7

https://www.crd.bc.ca/education/school-programs/for-k12-teachers/educator-guides-resources/watersheds
https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-source/salt-spring-island-ea-pdf/ssi-parc/rainbowroadindoorpoolfallschedulel2015.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://harrisesperanza.wix.com/nativeartteacher
http://www.1in52.ca/#about-us
http://www.robismith.com


5. Publicity and Media Coverage

The#weekend#event#was#adver3sed#on#posters,#websites#(including#Facebook#and#the#Salt#
Spring#Exchange),#no3ces#and#ar3cles#in#the#Gulf#Islands#DriYwood#and#Island#Tides.#See#
Appendix#D.#No3ces#were#also#sent#to#email#lists#of#local#organiza3ons,#including#school#
newslecers.#

6. Feedback and Future Recommended Improvements

6.1 Overall Event

The#event#is#a#success#as#measured#by#feedback#for#those#who#acended.#However,#given#the#
volunteer#hours#and#the#total#expenses,#event#coordinators#Suzan#Chamney#and#Shannon#
Cowan#recommend#that#the#Water#Fair#seek#to#combine#with#another#preMexis3ng#event#that#
draws#larger#crowds.#The#ideal#annual#event#to#partner#with#is#Seedy#Saturday#in#February#for#
many#reasons,#although#the#venue#for#that#event#is#not#suitable#to#host#both#events#together.#
Discussion#is#underway#between#event#organizers#to#determine#feasibility.#In#addi3on,#the#
3ming#of#Water#Fair#was#designed#to#align#with#World#Water#Day#March#22,#but#the#more#
appropriate#3ming#for#design#and#installa3on#of#rain#harves3ng#systems#and#other#waterMwise#
landscaping#is#autumn#or#late#summer,#in#3me#for#winter#rainy#seasons.#This#is#being#taken#into#
account#and#organizers#are#scoping#local#events#in#autumn#to#see#what#might#be#feasible.#
Ideally,#a#new#op3on(s)#will#be#brought#to#SSIWPA#for#considera3on#by#August#2016#for#the#
next#annual#Water#Fair#and#Rain#Harves3ng#Tour.#

6.2 Rain Harvesting Tour

All#types#of#systems#and#tour#hosts#portrayed#the#diversity#of#“what#works”#when#catching#and#
filtering#and#using#rainwater.#The#majority#of#acendees#did#not#go#to#all#loca3ons,#so#it#was#
great#to#have#so#many#to#choose#from.#The#format#seemed#to#work#well#and#we#recommend#a#
repeat#next#year.#The#amount#of#volunteer#3me#spent#organizing#this#tour#seems#well#worth#it#
considering#how#many#new#tour#loca3ons#appeared#with#one#year#old#systems#aYer#the#2015#
tour,#and#also#given#the#increase#in#uptake#of#rain#harves3ng#rebates#aYer#the#Fair#weekend#
2016.#

6.3 Booths

The#content#of#booths#was#appropriate;#there#could#be#even#more#booths#next#year.#In#2016,#
fewer#booths#resulted,#even#though#booths#are#only#paid#for#by#commercial#vendors#and#
educa3onal#booths#are#also#available.#The#floor#plan#worked#becer#at#this#venue#for#longer,#
quieter#conversa3ons#and#ease#of#demonstra3ons#and#more#space#to#set#up.#Set#up#happened#
just#in#3me#for#doors#at#11am,#so#in#future#perhaps#star3ng#the#booth#setup#at#8am#instead#of#
9am#might#be#wise.#

It#would#be#helpful#to#get#new#booths#each#year,#by#cul3va3ng#rela3onships#with#local#and#offM
lsland#businesses#and#notMforMprofit#groups.#Invi3ng#offMisland#organiza3ons#that#are#about#

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �8



water#and#watersheds,#e.g.#Freshwater#Fishing#groups,#Cowichan#Lake#and#River#Stewardship#
Society,#First#Na3ons#etc.##

The#handsMon#demos#were#easy#and#wellMacended#because#they#happened#indoors#in#the#
main#booth#tradeshow#arena,#and#having#more#of#these#is#recommended.#Kids#for#creeks#
booth#was#a#huge#hit.#

6.4 Volunteers

Volunteerism#is#essen3al#for#this#event#to#go#forward,#and#the#organizers#are#very#grateful#for#
the#returning#volunteers#and#a#few#new#volunteers,#especially#Greeters.#The#assistance#during#
setup#was#volunteered#by#students#from#the#High#School#who#received#dona3ons#for#their#
con3rbu3ons.#Similarly,#the#KidZone#volunteers#were#a#sports#team#and#the#event#organizers#
were#pleased#to#donate#to#their#team#for#teamMrelated#expenses#in#exchange#for#their#
volunteer#leadership#and#assistance#with#KidZone#performers#and#child#engagement.#Greeters#
were#beneficial#to#help#visitors#get#oriented,#and#the#event#would#not#func3on#without#them.##

6.5 Entertainment and KidZone

At#the#last#minute,#the#emcee#Nomi#Lyonns#was#not#able#to#acend.#SSIWPA#Coordinator,#
Shannon#Cowan,#delivered#the#short#and#sweet#announcements.#This#was#effec3ve#at#the#
sound#system#(rented#from#Film#Fes3val#Society),#in#the#GISS#mul3purpose#space#but#if#there#
had#been#twice#as#many#acendees,#it#would#not#have#been#loud#enough.#A#becer#“chime”#is#
also#needed#next#year#to#catch#acen3on#for#announcements.#If#this#space#is#used#again,#it#
would#be#ideal#to#use#the#screen#mounted#in#the#space#to#televise#announcements#visually.#

Instead#of#dance#and#song,#there#was#a#Water#Yoga#class#offered#this#year#by#Lyndsay#Savage.#
IT#was#adver3sed#in#advance,#but#s3ll#not#well#acended#(4).#Perhaps#it#would#be#becer#to#
adver3se#water#yoga#in#the#week#leading#up#to#the#event#at#regular#yoga#classes#around#the#
island#if#teachers#are#willing#to#par3cipate,#which#would#also#help#get#the#word#spread#about#
the#event?#

The#interac3ve#art#installa3on#‘River#of#Sound’#was#a#huge#draw,#and#could#be#improved#by#
having#more#of#a#“story”#behind#it.#Or,#some#other#ar3s3c#addi3ons#to#the#display,#such#as#
pain3ngs,#3D#scenery#for#a#river,#river#animals,#plants#and#insects,#etc.#Invi3ng#a#local#ar3st#
next#year#with#a#bit#more#direc3on#could#make#this#element#even#more#memorable.#

Elizabeth#Buchanan#(a#local#author,#storyteller,#and#educator)#was#a#great#success#once#again,#
and#new#addi3ons#Quen3n#Harris,#Rainbow#Pool#Staff,#Shaun#Lutn,#and#the#River#of#Sound#by#
Robi#Smith#were#all#fun,#suitable#to#the#audience,#informa3ve#and#wellMreceived.#Kate#Romain#
was#planned#but#had#to#cancel#last#minute#due#to#a#family#emergency,#so#she#agreed#to#come#
next#year#instead.#(refer#to#Appendix#B)#

Organizers#had#envisioned#a#blessing#and#welcome#ceremony#by#a#First#Na3ons#person,#and#
although#Shannon#acknowledged#the#Coast#Salish#Peoples#and#their#Territories#at#the#start#of#
the#day,#it#could#be#improved#upon#with#something#more#meaningful#from#a#local#or#
neighbouring#FN#representa3ve,#perhaps.#

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �9



6.6 Food

Complimentary#beverages#were#well#received.#There#was#enough#coffee,#but#it#would#have#run#
out#if#the#acendance#had#been#higher.#The#food#was#excellent#and#con3nuing#with#Hips#and#
Haws#is#recommended#for#future#years,#unless#the#event#pairs#with#an#event#that#already#
sports#food#vendors.#

6.7 Workshops

Workshops#had#great#turnouts.#It#became#apparent#that#more#3me#needed#to#be#given#to#the#
final#speaker#to#allow#for#the#cultural#waterMrelated#lessons#to#fill#the#dry#spaces#in#the#
audience,#and#suggested#that#those#interested#join#the#experien3al#learning#opportuni3es#
through#the#Xwaaqw’um#Project#in#Burgoyne#Bay#(second#Tuesday#every#month#beginning#
May#10#for#the#season,#contact#xwaaqwum@gmail.com).#

Workshop#topic#sugges3ons#for#next#year#that#were#not#fulfilled#this#year,#but#recommended#
in#2015#include:#sep3c#field#maintenance;#government,#notMforMprofit,#NGOs#implemen3ng#
water#conserva3on#programs;#hydrology#of#SML.#

Showing#an#educa3onal/documentary#film#or#two#about#water#could#be#a#nice#addi3on#to#the#
event,#especially#if#it#occurs#in#autumn#so#as#not#to#conflict#with#the#Film#Fes3val.#

6.8 Facility

Gulf#Islands#Secondary#was#ideal#for#this#event,#especially#to#allow#for#quiet#workshops#and#
KidZone#areas#that#were#near#to#the#main#area,#but#soundproofed#from#it.#Other#possible#
venues#on#Salt#Spring#include:#Community#Gospel#Chapel,#Farmer’s#Ins3tute#(not#ideal),#
Fulford#Hall#(with#the#workshops#in#the#Seniors#Annex),#but#the#GISS#is#ideal,#even#for#a#paired#
event.#If#necessary,#the#gymnasium#or#cafeteria#could#also#be#rented.#

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �10



7. Budget
2016  SSE Water Fair Income Statement

Revenue

Islands Trust: SSIWPA Events $2,900.00
SSI Water Council Grant Revenue$1,898.00
Islands Trust: SSIWPA Coordinator Contract $5,600.00
Booth Income $300.00
Public Donations $60.00
Country Grocer Donations $200.00
Windsor Plywood Donations $200.00
SS Coffee donation $75.00

Total Revenue $10,958.00

Expenses

Publicity $1,753.26
Insurance, Venue and Equipment Rental $1,199.79
Coordination paid by SSIWPA $4,340.00
Coordination paid by Water Council $882.00
Out of pocket expenses (supplies, volunteer food, etc.)$1,641.00

Total Expenses $9,816.05

Revenue - Expenses $1,142

Volunteer Hours: ~ 200 hours.
Not accounted for in the budget is the volunteer time spent on this event. 
We extend deep appreciation to all who volunteered.

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �11



8. Conclusions
As#the#second#annual,#this#event#achieved#its#objec3ves#of#connec3ng#water#to#community,#
and#providing#a#forum#for#learning#about#water#conserva3on#and#waterMrelated#local#issues#
and#solu3ons.#It#received#a#posi3ve#response#from#those#who#acended.##

Getng#more#acendance#for#the#costs#involved#is#the#main#improvement#area#for#next#year’s#
event#(~#250M300#par3cipants#in#the#weekend#in#total#in#a#popula3on#of#10,000).#It#seems#that#
the#messages#and#opportuni3es#of#this#event,#at#this#scale#need#a#larger#audience#to#make#the#
event#sustainable#into#the#future,#and#to#achieve#measurable#results#in#a#popula3on#of#this#
size.  

WATER FAIR 2016 FINAL REPORT DRAFT �12



Appendix A  - 2 pages



ISABELLA POINT ROAD

FULFORD-GANGES ROAD

FULFORD-GANGES ROAD

LOWER GANGES ROAD

NORTH END ROAD

NORTH END ROAD

SUNSET DRIVE

RAINBOW ROAD

M
U

SG
RO

VE RO
AD

KITCHEN ROAD

CUSHEON LAKE ROAD

BEDDIS ROAD

UPPER    GANGES ROAD

M
AL

IV
IE

W
 D

RI
VE

STARK ROAD

WALKERS HOOK ROAD

NORTH BEACH ROAD

SUN EAGLE DRIVE

WEST EAGLE DRIVE

FE
RN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD

VESUVIUS BAY ROAD
LONG HARBOUR ROAD

MANSELL ROAD

GARNER ROAD

CAPRICE

HEIGHTS

DUKES ROAD

PARK DR

FER DE LANCE

Every Drop Counts Rainwater Harvesting Tour

www.ssiwatercouncil.ca    |    www.ssiwatersheds.ca

Saturday, March 12 
Noon - 4:00 PM

Tours start every half hour, first  
one at noon, last one at 3:30 pm.

Tour rainwater collection systems from the north end 
to the south end, small to large, simple to high tech.  
See page 2 for details on each stop.

FREE EVENT

WATER FAIR 2016
Sunday, March 13

11 am - 3 pm
at Gulf Islands Secondary (GISS)

RETAIL & COMMUNITY BOOTHS, 
WORKSHOPS, DIY DEMOS, 

ENTERTAINMENT and FOOD
Visit our website for details

2016



Your Hosts: How long: Capacity: Used for: Other water: Roof type:

1
Jon
654 Vesuvius Bay Rd

13 years 40,000 litres / 
9,000 gal.

Irrigation North SS 
Water District

Metal

Use the second gate, past the sign.  The gate will be open and there is room to park inside the gate 
or on the boulevard between the main gate (with the sign) and the second gate.

2
John
1374 North Beach Rd

18 years 32,000 litres / 
7,000 gal.

Irrigation and 
all indoor uses 

except drinking

Bottled water Asphalt 
shingles

Parking on North Beach  is not recommended. There is room for three or four cars in the driveway.

3
Lawrence
171 Fernwood Road

Brand new 4,700 litres / 
1,250 gal.

Irrigation Highland 
Fernwood

Metal

Parking is limited, park on road or across the street at Fernwood School.

4
Ross 
206 Fernwood Road

several 
years

40,00 litres / 
9.000 gal.

Irrigation and 
many indoor uses

Highland 
Fernwood

Metal

Park on the street.

5
Monika 
285 Fernwood Road

1 year 13,600 litres / 
3,000 gal.

Irrigation Highland 
Fernwood

Torch on 
Roofing

Park on the school side of Fernwood Road a little up from the crest of the hill to avoid accidents.

6
Sharon & Gary 
308 Maliview Drive

11 years 2,300 litres / 
500 gal.

Irrigation and 
chores

Highland 
Fernwood

Metal

Park on Maliview, Walker Hook or Fer de Lance.

7
Pat
277 Maliview Drive

1 year 1,100 litres / 
300 gal.

Irrigation and 
chores

Highland 
Fernwood

Metal   
& cedar

Park on Maliview or Fer de Lance (just below property).

8
Jane
122 Mansell Road

21 years 227,300 litres 
/ 50,000 gal.

Irrigation & 
greenhouse

Cedar Lane 
Water District

Double poly 
& asphalt

Limited parking, park on the road.

9
Dan & Shirley 
243 Park Drive

½ year 4,200 litres / 
1,100 gal.

Irrigation North SS 
Water District

Asphalt 
shingles

Park on street, address is clearly marked.

10
Stefan & Tracy
Ruby Alton Reserve

11 years 27,200 litres / 
6,000 gal.

All household 
uses

No well, no 
piped water

Asphalt 
shingles

661 Isabella Point Rd

This is a self guided tour on March 12, 2016
You may visit any or all of these homes in any order. Homeowners have agreed to offer guided tours of their 
rainwater harvesting systems on the hour and half hour starting at noon. If you arrive between tour times 
feel free to join a tour in progress or wait for the next tour. 
Please note: This is an outdoor tour only. Please respect your hosts’ property. 

Text



Appendix B six pages















Appendix C  Feedback

2 pages



SSI Water Fair Comment Form
not

informative OK Informative Very Exceptional
How informative did you find this event? 2 6 22 3

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree
Not 

applicable
The Fair met my expectations for a range of learning 
experiences: 4 18 10 1
the Workshop content and presenters were suited to this 
event: 2 14 11 6
the retail and educational booths were suited to this 
event. I learned something: 1 3 18 11

the performances and kids area met my expectations: 7 5 6 15
SSI Exchange Email Driftwood Friend Other

Where did you hear about this event? 17 9 13 10

What did you like about the event?
workshops
informative workshops & useful displays. Helpful practical tips from Peter & Sharon
workshops & booths all great
neighbours, community, good information
vendor exhibits
Windsor booth, Ron George
demos
very imformative
casual
lots of info, also fo?? Commercial
hands-on information at the Windsor booth
Peter Clarke & Sharon B
nice mix of retail & info. 2) food & beverage & sit area
planning to harvest
rain barrel info
workshops
keyline plow workshop. Hips & Haws treats
information
practical workshops
demos, workshops
the quality of the presenters, very knowledgeable



friendly faces

the presenters were very enthusiastic

the kids watershed model took the prize

I think the kids watershed model and demo was superb, as was David Denning's speech

people passionate about water conservation

lots of interesting displays

new information about water connection systems

Name one area of improvement for future events:

need more time in workshops-too rushed at times

more contractors, more info from other relevant BC resi???

more vendor exhibits

demos (mike)

off-grid pumping (solar) would be useful

Workshops should be timed with a 15 min interval; workshop times should not overlap

workshops could be in rooms on the main floor?

better advertising of event & workshops 2) sales discoutns for retail purchase at event

better advertising  

signs at road

longer & more indepth workshops. More vendors of suitable products

longer workshops

perhaps a 5 minute leverage between workshops

keep stressing importance of monitoring water and how water drought are tied into climate change.

some sort of contest? Water trivia or SSI statistics? More interactive stuff so people can test their water knowledge/conservaiton competence

hard to improve upon

OTHER:

Thank you for organizing this!

thank you  

had a great time

given the small turnout there is no point to this event. Far better to do something at the Fall Fair

keep up the good work

wonderful event, please hold annually

keep it going -- the more education the better. Global changes can't be ignored

you do good work. I appreciate the efforst to rasie awareness & educate. Could there be more easily accessible info for summer tourists? Some visitors tend to be wasteful with water.



Appendix D

Publicity Materials



Published in Island Tides



Published in Island Tides





Tripp R
d

Sunset D
r

Sunset Dr

North End Rd

N
orth

E
nd

R
d

M
al

iv
ie

w
 D

r

West Eagle Dr

W
alkers

Hook
Rd

Walkers Hook Rd

Walkers Hoo k Rd

Mountain Park

Langs Rd

Channel Ridge

Fe
rn

w
oo

d 
R

d

Woodland Dr

Woodland

Ep
ro

n 
Rd

Suneagle
Dr

Upper Ganges Rd

Starks Rd

He
dg

er
 R

d

Quarry Dr

Elizabeth Dr

B
yron R

d

R
ob

in
so

n 
R

d

Lakefair

Vesuvius Bay Rd

Vesuvius Bay

Ensilwood Rd

M
ar

go
lin

e

Monteith Rd

Trincomali Hts

Suffolk Rd

Le Page Rd

Wh ims Rd

Broadwell

Bro
ad

well

Hilgrove

Sandpiper

So
ut

h
B

an
kCanvasback

H
ead

Mobrae
Ave

Cormor ant

Richard Flack Rd

Graham

Mountain View

Lan
gley B

ra
db

ur
y

Chu-A n

Parminter Rd

Dod
ds

B
ay

vi
ew

W
es

tc
ot

t

M
ay

co
ck

G
oodrich

.

St Mary Lake

Vesuvius
Bay

)HUQZRRG�3W�

7KH�PDS�GRHV�QRW�GHSLFW�DOO�RI�WKH�QDWXUDO�KDELWDWV��QRU�IRUHVWHG�]RQHV�WKDW�DUH�SUHVHQW�

,QVWHDG��WKH�DLP�RI�WKLV�PDS�LV�WR�GLUHFW�WKH�YLHZHU�WR�WKRVH�HFRV\VWHP�DUHDV�WKDW�DUH

FRQVLGHUHG�PRVW�VHQVLWLYH�DQG�LQ�QHHG�RI�RXU�SURWHFWLRQ�

Sensitive Ecosystem Definitions What can be done to protect sensitive ecosystems?

� ��� ��������

0HWUHV

6HQVLWLYH�(FRV\VWHPV

6W��0DU\�/DNH�:DWHUVKHG�%RXQGDU\

)UHVKZDWHU

0DWXUH�)RUHVW�

5LSDULDQ

:HWODQG

:RRGODQG

&DWFKPHQW�%DVLQ

2XWIORZ�%DVLQ

:DWHU�&RXUVHV

3RQGV�	�:HWODQGV

6HQVLWLYH�(FRV\VWHP�0DSSLQJ�LV�GHULYHG�IURP�WKH�6DOW�6SULQJ�,VODQG�7HUUHVWULDO�(FRV\VWHP�0DSSLQJ��0DGURQH�(QYLURQPHQWDO�6HUYLFHV�/WG��������

GRQH�DW�D�VFDOH�RI�����������EDVHG�RQ������DHULDO�SKRWRJUDSK\��0LQLPXP�SRO\JRQ�VL]H�LV�OLPLWHG�WR�ò�KD�DQG�WKH�DYHUDJH�SRO\JRQ�VL]H�LV������KD�

:DWHU�FRXUVHV�ZHUH�PDSSHG�E\�3��*UDQJH�DQG�.��5HLPHU�

0RUH�GHWDLOHG�VHQVLWLYH�HFRV\VWHP�LQIRUPDWLRQ�FDQ�EH�IRXQG�DW�WKH�,VODQGV�7UXVW�ZHEVLWH��XQGHU�WKH�OLQN�WR

³7UXVW�$UHD�0DSSLQJ´��KWWS���ZZZ�LVODQGVWUXVW�EF�FD�PDSV�WUXVW�DUHD�PDSSLQJ�HFRV\WHP�PDSSLQJ

Acknowledgements:

�����������������$UHDV�DGMDFHQW�WR�ZDWHU�ERGLHV��ZKLFK�DUH�LQIOXHQFHG�E\�IDFWRUV

VXFK�DV�HURVLRQ��VHGLPHQWDWLRQ��IORRGLQJ�DQG�RU�VXEWHUUDQHDQ�LUULJDWLRQ�

7KLV��]RQH�RQ�WKH�VRXWKHUQ�HGJH�RI�6W��0DU\�/DNH�LV�D

SDUWO\�WUHHG�ORZ�EHQFK�IORRGSODLQ�WKDW�LV�GRPLQDWHG�E\�EODFN�FRWWRQZRRG�

ZLOORZ�DQG�JUDVVHV�

Riparian:

����������������$UHDV�VDWXUDWHG�ZLWK�ZDWHU�IRU�ORQJ�SHULRGV�RI�WLPH��ZKLFK�GHYHORS

YHJHWDWLRQ�VXLWHG�WR�VDWXUDWHG�VRLOV�WKDW�FRQWDLQ�OLWWOH�R[\JHQ��7KH\�DUH

VHQVLWLYH��DQG�VSHFLDOL]HG��H[KLELWLQJ�KLJK�ELRGLYHUVLW\�DQG�UDUH�KDELWDWV�

,Q�WKH�QRUWKHDVWHUQ�FRUQHU�RI�6W��0DU\�/DNH��WKH�ZHWODQG�LV�GRPLQDWHG�E\�D

ZHVWHUQ�UHG�FHGDU�DQG�VORXJK�VHGJH�FRPPXQLW\��,Q�WKH�QRUWKZHVWHUQ�FRUQHU

RI�WKH�ODNH��WKH�ZHWODQG�LV�GRPLQDWHG�E\�D�����ZHVWHUQ�UHG�FHGDU��UHG�DOGHU�

VNXQN�FDEEDJH�DQG�����VSLUHD�6LWND

VHGJH�FRPPXQLW\�

Wetland:

��������������������'U\��RSHQ�IRUHVWV�ZLWK��������WUHH�FRYHU��VKDOORZ�VRLOV�DQG�URFN\

RXWFURSSLQJV��5DUH�DQG�IUDJPHQWHG��WKHVH�]RQHV�VXSSRUW�KLJK�SODQW�VSHFLHV

GLYHUVLW\��ZKLFK�VXSSRUWV�KLJK�GLYHUVLW\�RI�LQVHFWV��UHSWLOHV�DQG�ELUGV���,W�LV

LPSRUWDQW�WR�SURWHFW�WKHP�IURP�GHYHORSPHQW���7KLV�]RQH�WR�WKH�ZHVW�RI�WKH�ODNH

LV�GRPLQDWHG�E\�'RXJODV�ILU�±�VKRUH�SLQH���JUDQG�ILU�ZLWK�VRPH�DUEXWXV�DQG

2UHJRQ�JUDSH��

Woodland:

���������������������������6LPLODU�WR�WKH�ZRRGODQG�FODVV��PDWXUH�IRUHVWV�DUH�WUHHG�DW

D�VWDJH�EHWZHHQ�\RXQJ�IRUHVW�DQG�ROG�IRUHVW��LH��ROG�JURZWK���

7KHVH�]RQHV�RQ�WKH�PDS�DUH�JHQHUDOO\�GRPLQDWHG�E\�ZHVWHUQ�UHG�FHGDU�

DQG�JUDQG�ILU���IRDPIORZHU�FRPPXQLWLHV�

Mature Forest:

0DLQWDLQ�ZDWHU�TXDOLW\

5HWDLQ�RU�FUHDWH�QDWLYH�YHJHWDWHG�EXIIHUV�DURXQG�WKHP��WR�LVRODWH�WKHP�IURP�GLVWXUEDQFHV

&RQWURO�ODQG�DQG�ZDWHU�DFFHVV�

&RQWURO�LQYDVLYH�VSHFLHV

,I�GHYHORSPHQW�PXVW�RFFXU��FRQGXFW�DQ�HFRORJLFDO�LQYHQWRU\�DQG�DYRLG�GLVWXUEDQFH�WR�WKH�VHQVLWLYH�HFRV\VWHP�IHDWXUHV�RI�WKH�VLWH�



Memo to SSIWPA Technical Working Group 
From  
SSIWPA Coordinator 
April 27 2016 
 
Re: Request for support in the Cusheon Lake report by Doreen Hewitt to SSIWPA 
Steering Committee on March 18 2016, regarding Blackburn Landfill site monitoring 
 
Update: 
 
On April 27, 2016, Coordinator Cowan spoke on the phone with Anke Bergner, CRD 
Environmental Resource Management. She learned that the CRD is not responsible for 
any monitoring or inspection of the old capped landfill site adjacent to the waste transfer 
station.  
 
Monitoring of soil at the capped landfill (not leachate, not water or local surface 
waterways) was conducted by the Ministry of Environment in 2000, and Steering 
Committee member Hewitt has shared reports from that monitoring event (see files on 
TWG working folder on SSIWPA website, please). 
 
The waste transfer station inspections that CRD conducts are visual inspections, and 
never involve soil or water or air sampling. 
 
On behalf of SSIWPA, a freedom of information request has been sent to CRD 
Environmental Resource Management Department for receipt of the two most recent Site 
Inspection forms that CRD has on file for the Blackburn Waste Transfer Station. 



From: Coordinator Cowan 
Sent May 4, 2016-05-11 
To: Travis Tormala,  
 
Hello Travis, 
 
cc: SSI Watershed Protection Authority Chair George Grams (SSIWPA) 
 
Thank you for your support and participation in the recent grant proposal for 
riparian shoreline restoration at two drinking water lakes on Salt Spring where 
MoTI has a License of Occupation agreement with CRD.  
 
I have been involved with writing that particular grant, assisting two of the local 
stewardship groups on Salt Spring Island, at the direction of SSIWPA and as an 
action item from the Integrated Watershed Management Plan 2015 for St. Mary 
Lake. 
 
In a separate item: 
 
SSI Watershed Protection Authority Steering Committee discussed the Blackburn 
Road ditching concern coming from the Cusheon Lake Stewardship Committee 
last month. As a result of that discussion, the Steering Committee would like to 
invite you to the upcoming meeting.  
 
Please be invited to attend as observer (and/or as invited guest on the topic 
of ditching of Blackburn Road specifically, if you wish) at the upcoming 
meeting of the Salt Spring Island Watershed Protection Authority Steering 
Committee: 
 
Date: Friday May 20, 2016, 10:30 am - 12:30 pm. 
Location: 145 Vesuvius Bay Road in the Capital Regional District portable 
at Portlock Park. 
 
If you cannot attend in person but wish to attend via videoconferencing from your 
computer (with speakers or audio-only headset; and built in microphone), please 
let me know and I'll send the agenda and video conference instructions May 13 
or thereabouts. 
 
Thank you!  
 


